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1                      PROCEEDINGS

2         JUDGE JONES:  On the record.

3         Good morning.  I call for hearing Docket

4 Number 07-0446.  This is entitled, in part, Enbridge

5 Pipelines (Illinois) LLC Application pursuant to

6 Section 8-503, 509 and 15-401 of the Public Utilities

7 Act - the Common Carrier by Pipeline Law to Construct

8 and Operate a Petroleum Pipeline and when necessary,

9 to Take Private Property as Provided by the Law of

10 Eminent Domain.  This matter is being heard on

11 reopening, reopened by the Commission on June 26,

12 2014.

13         At this time, we'll take the respective

14 appearances orally for the record.  Some will be

15 appearing in person in the room here in Springfield,

16 but others will be appearing by telephone.

17         First, we'll take the appearance or

18 appearances on behalf of Enbridge Pipelines

19 (Illinois).

20         MR. REED:  Thank you, your Honor.

21         G. Darryl Reed, Dale E. Thomas, and Gerald

22 A. Ambrose of the law firm Sidley Austin LLP, One

23 South Dearborn, Chicago, 60603, (312) 853-7000.  Also

24 appearing on behalf of Enbridge is Amy Graham Back,
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1 26 East Superior Street, Duluth, Minnesota, 55802 on

2 behalf of the Petitioners.

3         JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.

4         Next, we'll take the appearance or

5 appearances on behalf of the Illinois Commerce

6 Commission Staff.

7         Could we have those appearances, please?

8         MR. OLIVERO:  Thank you, your Honor.

9         Appearing on behalf of the Staff witnesses

10 of the Illinois Commerce Commission, John Feeley.

11 And his address is 160 North LaSalle Street, Suite

12 C-800, Chicago, Illinois, 60601.  And James Olivero.

13 My address is 527 East Capitol Avenue, Springfield,

14 Illinois, 62701.

15         JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.

16         I'll now take the appearances on behalf of

17 the intervening parties.

18         Dr. Pliura, do you want to lead off?

19         DR. PLIURA:  Sure.

20         Tom Pliura, P-L-I-U-R-A, 210 East Center

21 Street, PO Box 130, LeRoy, Illinois, 61752.  Phone

22 number, (309) 962-2299.

23         JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.

24         Other appearances?



1085

1         MR. TURNER:  This is Mercer Turner from

2 Bloomington, Illinois, on behalf of the Turner

3 Intervenors in the '07 case.

4         JUDGE JONES:  And do you want to go ahead

5 and give your business address and phone number,

6 please?

7         MR. TURNER:  You bet.  Address is 202 North

8 Prospect Road, Bloomington, Illinois, 61704.

9 Telephone, (309) 662-3078.

10         JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.

11         Other appearances?

12         MR. EVES:  This is Pablo Eves on behalf of

13 the County of McLean, 115 East Washington Street,

14 Room 401, Bloomington, Illinois, 61701.  Phone,

15 (309) 888-5110.

16         JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.

17         Are there any other appearances?

18                  (No response.)

19         JUDGE JONES:  Let the record show there are

20 not, at least at this time.

21         With respect to scheduling, are there any

22 proposed schedules that the parties or some of the

23 parties are in agreement on?

24         MR. REED:  Your Honor, this is Darryl
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1 Reed --

2         DR. PLIURA:  To my knowledge, we really

3 haven't discussed this amongst the parties yet.

4         COURT REPORTER:  May I ask who that was

5 speaking, please?

6         JUDGE JONES:  Was that you, Dr. Pliura?

7         DR. PLIURA:  I'm sorry, yes, it was me.

8         As far as agreeing to dates, I apologize,

9 somebody spoke in the background.  But if we have

10 agreed to specific dates, I am not sure what that is,

11 but I'm happy to discuss that.

12         JUDGE JONES:  I intended to mention this a

13 minute ago.  Anyone that is participating by

14 telephone, if you could identify yourself before you

15 speak, at least when you're on the record.  That

16 would be appreciated so that our court reporter can

17 attribute your comments to you.

18         At this time, let the record show we hereby

19 go off the record to provide an opportunity to the

20 parties to discuss scheduling matters in the

21 procedural advancement of the case in an attempt to

22 reach agreement or at least resolve for better

23 understanding some of the issues that would be

24 associated with that.  So we hereby go off the record
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1 for that purpose.

2                  (Discussion off the record.)

3         JUDGE JONES:  Back on the record.

4         Let the record show there was an

5 off-the-record discussion for the purposes indicated.

6 It was held among counsel for the various parties.

7         Were any agreements reached with respect to

8 the scheduling of this proceeding?

9         MR. REED:  No, your Honor, we have not

10 reached agreement on any type of schedule.

11         And prior to you going off the record, I was

12 simply going to make a statement.  That statement

13 basically is that Enbridge filed its direct case on

14 reopening on May 19th --

15         JUDGE JONES:  I am going to interrupt you a

16 minute here.  I really don't want to get into any

17 arguments up front.  If there are some competing

18 scheduling proposals that can be read into the record

19 and that would facilitate the addressing of

20 scheduling issues in this docket so that we can move

21 forward with the schedule, then we can do that.

22         But I don't want to hear any argument about

23 a party's scheduling proposal or anybody else's at

24 this point in time.  There would be an opportunity
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1 for that if agreement is not reached.  But I do not

2 want to get into a series of arguments up front.

3         MR. REED:  No agreements have been reached

4 on the schedule, your Honor.

5         JUDGE JONES:  Are there some competing

6 scheduling proposals that the parties wish to put

7 into the record?

8         MR. REED:  I would simply make a statement

9 that Enbridge has already filed its case-in-chief.  I

10 would ask Staff and the Intervening parties if they

11 want to respond thereto.

12         DR. PLIURA:  This is Tom Pliura on behalf of

13 the Pliura Intervenors.  I believe Petitioner would

14 like to have an evidentiary hearing next week and

15 have this matter ruled upon next week.  I think that

16 that is -- to say that that's unrealistic.

17         In my opinion, we would like -- if Enbridge,

18 the Petitioner, plans no further filings, we would

19 like a reasonable time to conduct some discovery

20 identifying a host of different things that have

21 apparently now come up with the change in the pipe

22 size from 36 to 24.

23         I think a reasonable time would be we would

24 like to have 60 days to submit discovery requests to
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1 the Petitioner.  If Petitioner plans any discovery,

2 certainly, we're agreeable to get any responses we

3 have back to them.  I think then, after discovery,

4 there ought to be if Enbridge proposes any experts,

5 we're going to need at least some time to have some

6 experts respond to what Enbridge has, in fact, filed

7 in the affidavits that they filed.  I would

8 anticipate another 60 days on top of that after we

9 conduct our discovery.  And then set it for a hearing

10 sometime there out.

11         I mean, my gut reaction is this would

12 probably take four to six months.  But that's just my

13 thought on the view of the world.

14         JUDGE JONES:  Does the Commission Staff have

15 any scheduling proposals to put forward at this

16 point?

17         MR. OLIVERO:  Your Honor, not really.  I

18 mean, based on what Enbridge has indicated that they

19 were going to rest on, the pleading that they filed

20 on May 19th, Staff, at this point, hadn't anticipated

21 filing any direct testimony or any testimony

22 responding to that.

23         What we were anticipating doing was, if

24 agreeable with the ALJ, was to simply make a
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1 statement on the record at the time when the

2 evidentiary hearing was going to take place.

3         Now, I guess depending on what the Judge

4 decides in terms of a schedule, we would like to see,

5 I guess, what Mr. Pliura or the other Intervenors

6 were filing before determining we wouldn't have

7 anything to say.

8         JUDGE JONES:  Well, I will state up front

9 that I do not think this case would proceed the best

10 if parties are simply putting their positions or

11 their evidentiary positions forward orally at

12 hearing.  So if someone wants an opportunity to

13 provide evidence for the record, it will be pursuant

14 to some kind of written schedule.

15         It's not clear to me whether other parties

16 have any objections to what appears to be an Enbridge

17 proposal, to use its filings to-date as its

18 case-in-chief as opposed to making a written

19 testimony filing that is not known to me.

20         MR. TURNER:  Judge, this is Mercer Turner.

21 No objection to Enbridge doing that.

22         DR. PLIURA:  And this is Tom Pliura on

23 behalf of Pliura Intervenors.  If that is what they

24 intend to rest on, I don't have any -- we don't have
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1 any objection at all, and we can certainly respond to

2 those filings.  But I would assume then that that was

3 going to be it, and no further filings or supporting

4 affidavits or information would be forthcoming then

5 from Enbridge.

6         JUDGE JONES:  You mean in terms of the

7 direct case or --

8         DR. PLIURA:  Yes.  Well, it sounds like if

9 it's their intention, if it's Enbridge's intention to

10 rest on what has been previously submitted in their

11 May and/or June replies, then that's relatively

12 simple.  If that's all they have got, that's what

13 they have got, and I think we can respond to that.

14 If they intend that to be their direct evidence is

15 what it sounds like.

16         JUDGE JONES:  Is that the intent, Mr. Reed?

17         MR. REED:  Yes, your Honor, that is correct.

18 To the extent that you want us to re-file something

19 in the form of a verified statement, we can simply

20 mimic what has already been filed in the pleadings

21 and do that within a day or so.  But we will defer to

22 you on that.

23         JUDGE JONES:  What I am trying to do, I

24 think, is see what exactly is being proposed by
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1 Enbridge in terms of using the already-made filing as

2 case-in-chief.  And it appears that was intended to

3 be the direct case.  Whether other parties have any

4 objections to Enbridge proceeding with the

5 presentation of the direct case in that particular

6 procedural manner, it appears that those that have

7 spoken to that do not have a problem with that

8 provided they have an opportunity to make filings in

9 response to it.  I am not sure that we have heard

10 from everybody on that.

11         Is that -- does Staff have any response to

12 that procedural mechanism whereby Enbridge's direct

13 case would consist of what it has already filed?

14         MR. OLIVER:  Your Honor, this is Jim

15 Olivero.  I think that would be fine.  I saw it was

16 verified by Randy Rice.  So I don't think we have an

17 issue with just resting on their motion as it was

18 filed.

19         JUDGE JONES:  Does any other party have any

20 objection to what I believe Enbridge is proposing,

21 which is to use what it's already filed as its direct

22 case?

23         DR. PLIURA:  This is Tom Pliura.  We do not.

24 We mentioned that, I think, there seems like there
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1 should probably be a formal finding of that.  I am

2 sure there will be.  It seems likely there may be an

3 appeal again.  And just to help the Appellate Court

4 understand what is their direct evidence.  But we

5 don't object.

6         MR. EVES:  This is Pablo Eves, Tom.  Can I

7 talk now?

8         JUDGE JONES:  Yes, sir.

9         MR. EVES:  On behalf of the County of

10 McLean, I am a little bit in need of clarification of

11 Enbridge's position.  I don't object to that

12 position.  We ask for additional information to be

13 submitted in our filing.  I am still in the same

14 position.  I don't understand, you know, everything

15 that goes on in terms of what's been submitted in

16 support.  All I have is one verification of Randy

17 Rice.  I am certainly interested in getting more

18 information.  If we can't get that done, then I will

19 certainly be asking for that in my response.  And I

20 would like a reasonable amount of time to respond.

21         JUDGE JONES:  Well, the question right now

22 is whether anyone has any objection to Enbridge

23 making its direct case by means of what already has

24 been filed.  I am not sure I understand whether the
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1 County has an objection to that or not.

2         MR. EVES:  Thank you, Judge.  No objection.

3 Assuming that the May and June filings only of 2014

4 with the verification of Randy Rice.  I think being

5 the only verification I have seen.

6         JUDGE JONES:  Is that it, Mr. Reed?

7         MR. REED:  Yes, your Honor.  Both the May

8 and June pleadings, May 19th and June 13th were

9 verified by Mr. Rice.

10         JUDGE JONES:  That would be the Enbridge

11 direct case?

12         MR. REED:  That is correct, your Honor.

13         JUDGE JONES:  Just to make sure that I am

14 clear on where the other parties stand with respect

15 to that now that you have had benefit of hearing from

16 some of the other counsel, as well as Enbridge

17 counsel.

18         Does anyone have any objection to Enbridge

19 using its before-mentioned filings that have been

20 made as its direct case in this matter as opposed to

21 filing -- making a specific filing of direct

22 testimony?  Are there any objections to that?

23                  (No response.)

24         JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Let the record
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1 show there are not.

2         MR. THOMAS:  Dale Thomas, for the record.

3 Just so we're clear, we agree with your Honor that

4 there -- the other parties should have a chance to

5 respond in writing, as you indicated.

6         But it's also our position -- and we'd like

7 to know what your druthers are on this -- that no

8 evidentiary hearing is required in this case, because

9 we believe that the issues are either resolvable as

10 matters of law or, in fact, do not raise material

11 facts that are disputed.

12         And so, we'll abide by whatever your Honor

13 wants in that respect.  But we state some of that in

14 our pleadings, but we can make a separate filing on

15 that issue.  That's independent of your Honor's

16 desire for written responses, which we have no

17 problem.

18         JUDGE JONES:  You are arguing that others

19 would not have an opportunity to cross Enbridge, for

20 example?

21         MR. THOMAS:  Correct.

22         JUDGE JONES:  That will not be permitted.

23 The Commission has reopened this proceeding and has

24 done so under a provision of the statute which also
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1 calls into play the complaint section of the statute

2 which provides an opportunity to be heard on 10 days'

3 notice by other parties.

4         Given that, I think it would be best that I

5 just make that known up front, because perhaps doing

6 that will help facilitate some of the scheduling

7 snarls and debates that are arising and may continue

8 to arise even without my speaking to that.

9 Hopefully, by making that known, we'll be able to

10 make a little more progress on the scheduling front.

11         MR. THOMAS:  Thank you, your Honor.  I think

12 that clarifies that.

13         JUDGE JONES:  Given that, is it still

14 Enbridge's preference that it make its direct case

15 hereby means of the filings that have been made?

16         MR. REED:  Yes.  Yes, your Honor.

17         JUDGE JONES:  And just to make sure there is

18 not confusion on another point.  Mr. Olivero had

19 indicated that Staff might want to specifically put

20 in some kind of statement at that hearing.  And my

21 statement at that time was that we will best proceed

22 in this case by using pre-filed testimony to permit

23 parties to present their respective evidentiary

24 positions for evidentiary input.
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1         Now, whether parties choose to do that is

2 another question.  But there would be some scheduling

3 involved in testimony filings by other parties.  And

4 typically, that type of scheduling involves some sort

5 of rebuttal stage, which may involve rebuttal filing

6 by Enbridge or may also involve rebuttal filings by

7 Staff and Intervenors of each other.  So those

8 questions remain, I think, somewhat undeveloped.

9         MR. REED:  Your Honor, if I may.

10         JUDGE JONES:  Sure.

11         MR. REED:  I think what would help all of

12 the parties is an affirmative statement from you

13 regarding the scope of the reopening.

14         JUDGE JONES:  I understand the desire for

15 that to happen.  But all I can really tell you at

16 this time is that the Commission reopened the matter.

17 And that reopening, to a certain degree, has to speak

18 for itself.  And to the extent that issues arise over

19 the scope, which they may or may not, then we will

20 have to do whatever is necessary to get those

21 properly addressed and disposed of.

22         But while I understand that parties may or

23 some parties feel that it may be beneficial if I

24 could sit here and make pronouncements about the
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1 scope of the reopening and the intent of the

2 Commission, I do not believe that's how the process

3 really is designed to work.

4         I think that the Commission ruled.  We will

5 proceed accordingly.  To the extent that

6 disagreements arise over scope, etc., we will get

7 some process in place to get those addressed, relying

8 on input from the parties rather than just simply an

9 announcement from me about what that scope is.

10         MR. REED:  Thank you, your Honor.

11         The Commission has spoken and we will abide

12 by the Commission's ruling.  And that is why we have

13 made the proposal to simply rest on the pleadings

14 that we have filed.  And we would seek a day for

15 Staff and Intervenors to make a response thereto

16 expeditiously.

17         MR. EVES:  This is Pablo Eves with the

18 County.  My sense on this is that, especially that

19 Mr. Pliura and counsel for Enbridge are pretty far

20 apart in terms of what might be a reasonable

21 schedule.  I have heard multiple suggestions from

22 Mr. Pliura, most of which are reasonable, some of

23 which seem to be quite lengthy.

24         I don't know if it's valuable to everyone if
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1 we would be respectful of the Administrative Law

2 Judge and perhaps we would meet separately to send

3 perhaps two competing proposals, if that's what it

4 takes, to submit those for further consideration by

5 the factfinder here.  And I am not trying to be

6 pessimistic about our chances to come to an

7 agreement, but I think there's at least two different

8 versions of what is going on, and perhaps that should

9 be submitted initially.

10         DR. PLIURA:  This is Tom Pliura.  Just to

11 follow up on that.  I do agree that I believe, with

12 all due respect, we're quite a ways apart on where we

13 feel things should be.  And we are going to want to

14 submit some written discovery.  We undoubtedly will

15 want to probably conduct at least limited oral

16 depositions, take some oral depositions after that

17 discovery is taken like we previously did.  There may

18 be some need for rebuttal.

19         But that's what I am thinking.  So I

20 mentioned 60 days for written discovery, then a

21 reasonable maybe additional 60 to 90 days after that

22 to take depositions, and then find a date for an

23 evidentiary hearing.  That's kind of where I am,

24 where my thought is.
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1         But I am happy to submit a written proposal.

2 Maybe the Intervenors could make an attempt to, given

3 the statute, the stature that there is the scope

4 isn't going to be limited here today or that the

5 parties will now, having heard what you just said,

6 maybe one last effort to try to get a mutually

7 agreeable schedule set forth.  And if that fails,

8 then the parties and Intervenors and Petitioners

9 submit competing schedules and then the

10 Administrative Law Judge issue a ruling.

11         JUDGE JONES:  I think we're at a point now

12 where the question is whether the parties would like

13 some additional opportunity off the record to try to

14 work out some scheduling.  And while that may not be

15 seen as an effort that would be very productive, I

16 would just note two things.

17         When we went back on the record, I think

18 there have been some comments made and some

19 clarifications made that may assist the parties in

20 their efforts to arrive at some sort of scheduling.

21 I think we were able to address a few up front things

22 on the record in the last few minutes which may be of

23 some benefit in attempting to work out a schedule

24 among the parties.
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1         Then the other thing is that we have a lot

2 of cases with a lot of parties here at the

3 Commission.  And many are under the pressure of

4 somewhat compressed deadlines and things of that

5 nature.  Many of those involve a great number of

6 parties.  We have a lot of parties in this case.  But

7 we have lots of parties in some other cases too.

8 Most of the time, parties work out a schedule and

9 they understand that a worked out schedule, whatever

10 the tradeoffs, is better for them than one that just

11 shows up in a ruling.

12         Now, if we need to go the written scheduling

13 proposal route, we will.  We can get those proposals

14 on file and a ruling will be issued.  So there will

15 be an opportunity for input.  It's never the same as

16 when the parties can come to agreement.

17         Having said all that, I am not going to

18 force the parties to spend a bunch more time this

19 morning trying to work out something if you think it

20 would just be futile.  No benefit of that.

21         Let me see if I can get a sense if the

22 parties would like a few minutes among yourselves.

23 If you do not, so be it.  We will proceed in some

24 other manner.
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1         Any thoughts?

2         DR. PLIURA:  This is Tom Pliura.  I

3 certainly would like, given the comments made after

4 we went back on the record, I would certainly like

5 another chance to come to some kind of reasonable

6 agreement so we could talk off the record again.

7         JUDGE JONES:  And Mr. Reed, did you want to

8 --

9         MR. REED:  Enbridge has no objection to

10 that, your Honor, to the extent you want to go off

11 the record and talk.  That's fine.

12         JUDGE JONES:  At this time, let the record

13 show we hereby go off the record to give the parties

14 another opportunity to address their respective

15 scheduling interests in an attempt to better

16 understand other proposals and perhaps reach some

17 sort of agreement.

18         With that, we hereby go off the record.

19              (Discussion off the record .)

20         JUDGE JONES:  Back on the record.

21         Let the record show there was an

22 off-the-record discussion among the counsel for the

23 parties for the purposes indicated.

24         Were any agreements reached either with
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1 respect to the scheduling or at least portions or

2 elements of the schedule?

3         MR. REED:  Your Honor, the parties have

4 agreed to file competing schedules for your

5 consideration on the 25th of July, a week from

6 tomorrow.

7         JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.

8         Was a date agreed to for any responses to

9 those or just go through the filing, the agreement

10 just go through the filing?

11         MR. REED:  It just goes through the filing,

12 your Honor.

13         JUDGE JONES:  Mr. Reed, you believe that to

14 be an agreed-to date?

15         MR. REED:  I believe so, yes.

16         JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.

17         Do the other parties have any objection to a

18 file date of July 25th for that purpose?

19         DR. PLIURA:  Pliura Intervenors do not

20 object at all, and agree to that.

21         MR. TURNER:  Mercer Turner.  No objection.

22         JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.

23         Anybody else?

24         MR. EVES:  Pablo Eves for the County.  No
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1 objection, your Honor.

2         JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.

3         That scheduling proposal, the proposal for

4 scheduling to be filed on July 25th is approved.  And

5 it appears the agreement of the parties to do that

6 contemplated there would be a filing on the 25th.  So

7 I will not, at this time, add any response dates to

8 that schedule.  I'll approve what the parties have

9 agreed to in terms of making those filings, those

10 competing filings on that day.

11         Upon reviewing them, if I believe it will be

12 useful to provide a response date in there, a short

13 response date, I will consider that.  And if I

14 believe it will be beneficial, I would send out a

15 ruling electronically providing a short response date

16 for parties.  But I'll hold off on that right now

17 since the parties have agreed to single filing.  But

18 I just want the parties to be aware that I may add a

19 response date to there if I believe it would be

20 useful.  If that happens, it will be a short response

21 date.

22         Do the parties have anything else for the

23 record today before we conclude?

24         MR. REED:  Petitioner has nothing.
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1         DR. PLIURA:  Pliura Intervenors do not have

2 anything else, your Honor.

3         JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.

4         Thank you to the parties for your

5 participation today.  I will hold off on attempting

6 to schedule any specific hearing dates or status

7 hearing dates until we receive the various proposals

8 on the 25th.  So that will be done later.

9         There was some discussion earlier regarding

10 cross examination of witnesses.  And I just want to

11 clarify one thing in case I was unclear on one point.

12 In the cases -- and I think the parties that are

13 participating here are aware of this.  Typically,

14 there are witnesses for whom there is no cross

15 examination.  And if that's the case here, be it some

16 of the witnesses or all the witnesses, then we'll

17 further -- assuming no objections to a process

18 whereby that testimony would be put into the record,

19 without -- by affidavit, then we'll not require those

20 witnesses to physically appear at a hearing if there

21 is no cross of them.

22         Again, that assumes that parties agree in

23 advance that they have no cross or objections to a

24 particular witness or to a process whereby the
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1 witness testimony would go in by affidavit rather

2 than the witness having to be physically present.  So

3 if there are witnesses in the case and there is no

4 cross of them, then that option will be made

5 available to make it easier for the parties and the

6 witnesses to put their cases in.

7         At this time, let the record show that

8 today's prehearing conference is concluded.  In

9 accordance with the above, July 25th is the filing

10 date for the filing of competing procedural

11 schedules.  No hearing date will be scheduled at this

12 specific time.  Thank you all.

13              (Prehearing conference concluded.)

14
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1                CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

2

3

4         I, Angela C. Turner, a Certified Shorthand

5 Reporter within and for the State of Illinois, do

6 hereby certify that the hearing aforementioned was

7 held on the time and in the place previously

8 described.

9

10         IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my

11 hand and seal.
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17                  ____________________________

18                  Angela C. Turner
                 IL CSR #084-004122
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